HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 14, 2006

1:43 P. M
CALL TO ORDER
Vice Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 1:43:06 PM
MENMBERS PRESENT
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Richard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Ji m Hol m
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses
Representative Bruce Weyhrauch
MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
ALSO PRESENT
Representati ve Jay Ranr as; Konr ad Jackson, Staff,
Representative Kurt O son; Jim Pound, Staff, Representative
Jay Ranras; Nico Bus, Acting D rector, Division of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnment of Natural Resources;
Jim Derringer, Staff, Representative Jim Holm M ke
Pawl owski, Staff, Representative Kevin Myer
PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
Steve Van Sant, State Assessor, Departnent of Commerce,
Community and Economic  Devel opnent; Jenni fer Yuhas,
Fai rbanks North Star Borough, Fairbanks; Chris Maisch,
Director, Diyvision of Forestry, Departnment of Natura
Resources, Anchorage; Scott Walden, Coordinator, Kena
Peni nsul a Borough Enmergency Managenent O fice, Kenai; Craig
Goodrich, Fire Chief, Gty of Anchorage; Lynn W] cock, Chief
of Fire and Aviation, D vision of Forestry, Departnent of
Natural Resources; Tamara Cook, Direction, Legislative
Legal , Juneau; Chris Beheim Crime Lab  Supervisor,

Departnent of Public Safety, Anchorage
SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



#HB273

HB 273 An Act relating to the dividends of individuals
claimng all owabl e absences; and providing for an
effective date.

HB 273 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD

HB 334 An Act relating to an exenption from and deferral
of municipal property taxes for certain types have
deteriorated property.

HB 334 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 379 An Act relating to controlled substances.
CS HB 379 (JUD) was reported out of Conmttee with
a “do pass” recommendation and with zero note #1
by the Departnment of Health & Social Services.

HB 395 An Act extending the period of the fire season.

HB 395 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

1:45:56 PM

#HB334
HOUSE BI LL NO._ 334

An Act relating to an exenption from and deferral of
nmuni ci pal property taxes for certain types of
deteriorated property.

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS, SPONSOR, testified that in
several communities, the State has seen private properties
go from prosperous offices and residential building in the
boom cycle to being enpty. He pointed out that the econony
is returning and new devel opers are |ooking at abandoned
buil dings as an opportunity to refurbish wthout conplete
reconstruction. He submitted that could revitalize
nei ghbor hoods and cities.

Representative Ranras noted that HB 334 would help clarify

exi sting tax deferral |anguage. The legislation places a
deadline on the exenption that coincides wth existing tax
deferral sunsets. The primary difference in the |anguage

allows for the devel opment of condom nium or office type
buildings to be established in what are currently referred

to as deteriorated structures. At the |local governnent
di scretion, the tax deferral would be spelled out and
restricted only by the actual transfer of property. The

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



clear l|anguage allows a developer nore stability and the
ability to secure necessary |oans for reconstruction.

Representati ve Weyhrauch pointed out that Amendnent #1 woul d
replace the entire bill. Representative Ranras responded
that he had not yet reviewed the anendnent.

JI' M POUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JAY RAMRAS, expl ai ned that
Representative Hol m began reworking the amendnent when it

was obvious that there was a problem with the bill’s
| anguage and that it wuld not allow the deferral to
continue should the building be rented out. The origina

intent of the anmendnent was to renovate, bringing back to
code and nmaking it available for use by the public. Hence,
the major rewite of the anmended | anguage.

Representative Foster asked the status of the MKay Buil ding
in Anchorage. Representative Ranras understood that the
devel oper was the sanme person. He stated it was not his
intent to neet developers interested in the building because
he did not want to be influenced. Renting the building is
not an option with the original |egislation; consequently,
Representative Hol m was requested to change the | anguage to
include renting, which would then allow, “mking good” on
back property taxes. The intent continues to be getting
“dead buil dings” back functioning.

M. Pound pointed out anended |anguage, which includes
denolition, with referral to “drop dead” tax deferrals.

Vice Chair Stoltze pointed out that the nmenber’s packets did
not include any correspondence with local nunicipalities.
M. Pound responded that sone changes in the anmendnment could
garner those letters.

Vice Chair Stoltze inquired about other eligible buildings.
M. Pound replied that the only one he was presently aware
of, is the McKay Buil ding. However, he believed there would
be others, based on input fromrealtors.

Representative Ranras interjected that he had received an
email from Ron Peck, Executive Director, Alaska Tourism

Association, noting support for the effort. He related
t houghts regarding tourism He admtted that he was
reluctant to bring a bill forward that has such a narrow
single use, but believed the bill has nerit for statew de

devel opnment through 2010.
1:55:32 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze nmentioned there could be statew de
hi storical preservation opportunities with passage of the
| egi sl ati on. Representative Ranras noted he was excited
about that option.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



Vice Chair Stoltze questioned the inpact of “renodeling”.
Co-Chair Meyer asked if any of the nunicipalities support
the bill. M. Pound understood once the anendnent was
included, the Fairbanks North Star Borough would be
supportive. He noted on-line testinony.

M. Pound pointed out that the amendnent had just arrived.

1: 58: 06 PM

Representative Kerttula referenced the 2010 date and asked
if consideration had been given to making it permanent. M.
Pound explained the entire section sunsets in 2010,
i ndi cated essential by Legislative Legal.

Representative Kerttula reiterated her question as to why it
was being sunset at all. M. Pound understood that the
entire current statute exenption | anguage sunsets then.

Representative Holm MOVED to ADOPT Amendnment #1, #24-
LS1353\ A. 3, Cook, 2/14/06. Vice Chair Stoltze OBJECTED.

Representati ve Wyhrauch asked why an exenption past 2010
had not been granted. He referenced Subsection 1, Line 19,
of the anendnent regarding “paynent of the deferred taxes”
and asked if the taxes would becone 100% due at the defined
period or could they be paid over a period of tinmne.

M. Pound referenced | anguage on Page 2, Line 8, Section D
“a date provided in the ordinance adopted under this
subsection,” which explains that a |ocal nmnunicipality would
have an option to negotiate individual contracts with a
devel oper. O herwise, the intent is if the property neets
one of requirenent, deferred taxes becone payabl e.

Representati ve Wyhrauch advised that “due” and *“payable”

mean different things. M. Pound thought that | anguage
woul d be clarified in the terns of the contract between the
devel oper and the municipality. It is the sponsor’s intent

that the nmunicipality be the one that controls it.

2: 02: 36 PM

JIM DERRI NGER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JIM HOLM coment ed
that Anendment #1 attenpts to address tax deferral as the
buil ding is being renodel ed. It also provides a tine for
when the deferral is nade. Oiginally, there was |anguage
allowng for a five-year deferral. After speaking with the
Borough, it was determned that it would be best to provide
nore flexibility.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer asked how the new anendment differs fromthe

original one. M. Derringer responded that an added
provision includes “renodel” and the tine certain for the
tax deferral. M. Pound added that the anmendnent includes
“occupancy”.

Co-Chair Meyer inquired what “renodeling” would consist of.
M. Derringer pointed out that is clarifying |anguage, which
differs from renovation. Legi slative Legal recommended
i nclusi on of the |anguage.

2: 05: 36 PM

Representative Joule asked if someone renodeled and then
placed the building wup for sale, would the sale
requi re”occupancy” permt. M. Pound explained that if a
transfer takes place (sale), then the deferred tax becones
payabl e. M. Derringer pointed out it would be considered
renmodel ed and eligible for occupancy. Once 50% of a
buil ding is occupied, taxes are due.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if there was support from the
Muinicipality in Fairbanks. M. Derringer referenced the on
[ ine testinony.

Vice Chair Stoltze questioned the use of “renodeling”,
worryi ng about potential |oopholes. He requested testinony
from the State assessor and those affected nunicipalities
out si de of Fairbanks, pointing out the high dollar issues.

2: 07: 50 PM

STEVE VAN SANT, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), STATE
ASSESSOR, DEPARTMENT OF COWERCE, COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT, commented that “renodel” was all enconpassing
and would depend on the |ocal code. He acknow edged, it
needs to be witten into the |ocal code. In theory, the
exenption would provide for a 10-year exenpt on the
property; the owner could then nove into a 5-year defernent.
When sold, the deferred anbunt would be owed at the tine of
the transfer.

Vice Chair Stoltze asked the sponsor why that |anguage was
necessary and what it acconplished. M. Pound said that
Legi sl ative Legal submitted the wording. The Sponsor does
not care one way or another about it.

M. Van Sant pointed out that the |egislation addresses
deteriorating property, property that is substantially bel ow
par, needing major work. He recommended that the renode

| anguage be renoved.

2:10: 37 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



Representative Hawker wanted to know what the bill provides
that is not already in existing statute. He noted the
addition of two triggers:

* 50% occupancy on a rehabilitation, and
e Conpletion of denolition.

He pointed out that those indicators would be placed into
statute as mandatory triggers for the repaynent of taxes
He thought that |anguage forces nunicipalities what they can
do.

2:14: 08 PM

M. Pound pointed out the third trigger:

 The date provided in ordinance adopted under that
subsecti on.

The problem with existing |language is that it creates a
“bl ank” area for the devel oper being able to acquire a | oan.
There is not |anguage addressing when the defernment begins.
That makes it nore difficult for a developer to secure
necessary financing.

Representati ve Hawker understood that the notivation then
was to provide a date as to when the nunicipality could
trigger it sooner. He nmaintained his continual support of
local control and determ nation. He thought that a
financial institution, when granting credit to a potentia
applicant, the nmunicipality could opt to exercise such a
deferral. He appreciated the clarity in Section (D). He
reiterated concern for the need of the |egislation.

2:17:19 PM

Co-Chair Meyer inquired if Representative Hawker’'s reference
was to the anmendment or the bill. Representati ve Hawker
responded that the amendnent is the bill. M. Derringer
stated that +the extra provisions <could provide tine
certainty to a devel oper. O herwse, it wuld cause

boroughs to nodify the provisions.

Representati ve Hawker thought that would be inherent in an
ordi nance passed by a municipality. He worried about over-

st eppi ng | egi sl ative boundari es and i nadvertently
constrai ni ng econom ¢ devel opnent and rehabilitation
pr oj ects. M. Derringer interjected that the reason that

50% is used was so the person could continue up to 60% or
70% and never transfer or pay the taxes.

2:19:48 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



Representative Hawker stated that was inherent to the
current municipal authority.

JENNI FER YUHAS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), FAI RBANKS
NORTH STAR BCOROUGH, FAI RBANKS, testified that Mayor Wiittier
supports the changes in the legislation that would provide
the greatest degree of flexibility at the nunicipal |evel
He supports the idea that municipalities should be able to
determ ne a tax deferral

Representative Hawker comented that was his point. Co-
Chair Meyer questioned the need of the |egislation.

2:21: 38 PM

Representative Kerttul a reconmended t esti nony from
Legi sl ative Legal Services; she asked about the 10-year date
and the historic significance of that exenption.

TAMARA COOK, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTI ON,
LEQ SLATI VE LEGAL, JUNEAU, stated that she had no
information on the 10-year gate. That came strictly as a
drafting request fromoutside their office. Wth respect to
existing law, there is silence regarding when property for
which the taxes have been deferred, when that deferral
peri od ends. The deferral cannot go |onger than five years.
It is known under existing law, if the ownership of the
property changes, then all the deferred paynents becones
due.

Ms. Cook assumed that the ordinance would be structured to
address what the tinme period should be, when taxes are
deferred, if ownership does not change.

Ms. Cook continued, HB 334, not the anendnment, clarifies the
difference is that the defernent for 1 — 5 years of taxes
and nmakes that payable only when ownership changes. The
amendnent A.3 is nore el aborate offering several “triggers”:

* One is in existing |law, when ownershi p changes;
» Second is a test based on occupancy;

 Third is based upon when property is a project
involving the denolition of a structure and when
finished, the municipality nmakes the determ nation;

 Fourth is the date provided by an ordinance, which
woul d presumably allow a nunicipality to offer deferred
tax paynents for years one, two and three years; those
taxes would beconme due and payable at a particular
dat e.

Ms. Cook pointed out that under the amendnent, if a trigger
occurs, paynents are due at the earliest of the listed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



event. By ordinance, the nmunicipality would not be able to
change the occupancy test.

2:25:12 PM

Representative Kerttula inquired if the amendnent would
create nore restrictions on nunicipalities. Ms. Cook
replied that partially was correct and that current statute
does not direct the tine period the deferral nust last. It
coul d be addressed by ordi nance.

M. Van Sant added that a Fairbanks North Star attorney
regarding the exenption of the Polaris Building had
contacted him The question arose with the devel oper and
the legal departnment as to when the deferred paynent woul d
be owed. The attorney advised the developer, it would be
due at the end of five years. The devel oper disagreed, and
understood that the tax would only be due when the property
sol d. The anendnent renoves “only” and inserts the other
triggers referenced by Ms. Cook.

2:28: 00 PM

Co-Chair Meyer referenced “renodeling”. Ms. Cook did not
know why that word had been incl uded.

Vice Chair Stoltze MOED to DELETE all references to
“renodeling” and “renodel” in the bill. There being NO
OBJECTI QN, the references were changed.

Vice Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION to Anmendnment #1
There being NO further OBJECTI ON, Amendment #1 was adopt ed.

Representative Hawker asked the Chairman’s intention wth
passage of the |egislation. He questioned if it was
necessary and requested | egal clarification regarding
whet her it inadvertently treads on other devel opnent.

Co- Chair Meyer agreed. He suggested holding the bill in
Commttee for a few days to check with other communities and
requested that Representative Hawker ask Ms. Cook any | egal
guestions he m ght have at this tine.

2:32: 05 PM

Representative Hawker referenced the anended bill and asked
if it would acconplish anything that was not already
authorized in statute. He questioned if the latitude should
be left wthin the municipality.

Ms. Cook referenced testinony from M. Van Sant, who
remarked that there was a conflict in the statutory
interpretation between a devel oper and one of the nunici pal
attorneys. The nmunicipal attorney advised that when

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



ownership changes, the deferred tax is due. The
muni ci pality has the option to nmake the taxes due sooner
Taxes are due the mnute the deferral ends. Ms. Cook did
not know for sure, but supposed that Anmendnent #1 would
clarify that a nmunicipality could set a date when paynent
was due. Representative Hawker concluded that Amendnent #1
does nake explicate the date certain when the tax i s due.

2:35: 50 PM

Representative Kelly echoed concerns regarding what is wong
with existing law, what are the negative inpacts and how
does the legislation fix it.

Co-Chair Meyer agreed and requested that the sponsor and
Representative Holms office provide further research
regar di ng expressed concerns.

HB 334 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.

2:37:51 PM

#HB379
HOUSE BILL NO. 379

An Act relating to controll ed substances.

M KE PALOWBKI, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KEVI N MEYER, presented
an overview of the bill. HB 379 elevates ganma-
hydr oxybutyric acid (GHB) to a «classification of a
controll ed substance in State |aw. GHB was elevated to a
schedule 1 in February 2000 by the federal governnent. The
i ssue cane forward over the summer when a 16-year-old high
school student died after overdosing on a version of GHB not
covered under State | aw.

M. Paw owski highlighted the changes made in the House
Judiciary Comm ttee.

* Tightening of the title, Page 1, Lines 1 & 2, to avoid
the original version, which was an act, related to
control | ed substances.

* The addition on Page 1, Line 14, a limtation for the
federally recognized drugs when intended for human
consunption. [Sonme of the chem cals do have legitinmate
uses. ]

 Page 2, only the federally recognized analogs to GHB
are explicitly in Statute

* Section 2, repeals the classification GHB as a schedul e
4, where it currently is in statute.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



M. Paw owski comrented that those changes would send a
cl ear nmessage that they are extrenely dangerous drugs.

Co-Chair Meyer sunmarized that the legislation would nove
GB froma Cass 4 to a Cass 1. M. Paw owski pointed out
that GHB has gained a lot of popularity as a “date rape
drug”.

Co- Chair Meyer pointed out the zero fiscal note.

Representative Joule asked the result of noving GHB from a
Class 4 to a Cass 1 offense. M. Pawl owski related that
the Al aska case was prosecuted under the federal |aw because
at that level it is a COass 1. In State law, the first
offense is not be applicable and the m ninum sentence is a
year. \Whereas, a Cass 1, the sane crine, the first offense
sentence would be 0-2 years or with a maxi m ze sentence of
10 years.

Representative Joul e asked how many cases could be inpacted
with the changeover. M. Paw owski shared that the dilenmma
of GHB does not show up on a test. It is difficult to
detect. There would not be many possession cases because it
is so difficult to prove possession; however, when it has
been admi nistered, the State could see nore of those cases.

2:43: 00 PM

Representative Joule voiced support for the direction the
bill was going but thought it would increase the Departnent
of Corrections budget overtinme. M. Paw owski agreed.

Co-Chair Meyer acknowl edged that the State mght see
financi al consequences resulting fromthe |egislation.

Vice Chair Stoltze noted there was no fiscal commentary from
the Public Defender office. M. Paw owski responded that
the sponsor had only conferred with the Departnent of Law.
He indicated that they could ask for a fiscal note fromthe
O fice of Public Advocacy (OPA) and the Public Defender if
that was the wish of the Conmttee.

Vice Chair Stoltze recommended it. M. Paw owski enphasized
that the proposed change is already schedul ed at the federal
| evel and recomrended that it be put in conpliance at the
Al aska State |evel

2:46: 08 PM

Representative Hawker recommended that the title Dbe
“tightened up”. He pointed out the reference be to “certain
chemcally simlar substances”. He inquired if there had

been “expert testinony” from a pharnacol ogi st indicating no

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



conmprom se of industrial activity. M. Paw owski deferred
that question to Chris Beheimof the State Crine |ab.

2:48: 50 PM

CHRIS BEHEIM (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), CRIME LAB
SUPERVI SOR, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY, ANCHORAGE, offered
to answer questions of the Commttee. He spoke to the two
subst ances, Gamma Butyrol actone (GBL) and Butanediol (BD),
when taken internally, nmetabolize to GiB and produce exactly
t he sane chem cal effect.

Representative Hawker asked if M. Beheim was confortable
with the proposed |ist. M. Beheim replied they are his
reconmmendat i ons based on federal statutes.

Representative Kelly asked how many other states have taken

t hese neasures. M. Pawl owski was not sure of the exact
nunber but knew specifically of two. Every state has taken
their individual approach on the issue. The original
version of the bill was taken from California, which defined
an anal ogue in statute. Because of the way in which the
Al aska Statutes (AS) are witten, that did not totally work
for us. New Jersey listed the chemcals as the ones

recogni zed by the federal governnent.

Representative Kelly asked if 50% of +the states had
addressed the concern. M. Paw owski thought that fewer
than hal f had; however, pointed out that federal |aw applies
ever ywher e.

Representati ve Weyhrauch requested nore information on the

dat e-rape drug. M. Pawl owski responded that “by and
large”, it is an industrial solvent.
2:52: 00 PM

Co-Chair Meyer inquired about the industrial use for the
dr ugs. M. Beheim replied that G4 and BD are industria
solvents used in manufacturing of fibers and pesticides,
havi ng several other uses. The key concern is when used for
human consunpti on. M. Beheim provided exanples of
subst ances wi t h war ni ngs.

Represent ati ve Hol m asked whi ch pesticides use the chem cal.
M. Beheimdid not know specific pesticide nanes.

Representati ve Foster MOVED to REPORT CS HB 379 (JUD) out of
Commttee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanyi ng zero note. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so
or der ed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



CS HB 379 (JUD) was reported out of Conmittee with a “do
pass” recommendation and with zero note #1 by the Departnent
of Health & Social Services.

2:55: 50 PM

#HB395
HOUSE BI LL NO._ 395

An Act extending the period of the fire season.

KONRAD JACKSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KURT OLSON, testified

that the spruce bark beetle kill on the Kenai Peninsula has
created an enornous anount of dry grass and that the dead
trees are susceptible to lightning strikes and nman nade

fires. The threat grows greater every year. Gadually over
the past several years, the climate in that area has been
warmng earlier, leaving wild areas dry and increasing the
risk of major wldfires.

M. Jackson pointed out that the | argest uncontained fire on
the Southern Kenai Peninsula was the Tracy Avenue fire,
starting before My 1%, 2005, threatening residents and
property. The fire mght have been contained had the
equi pnent and personnel been available the first day it
started.

M. Jackson discussed that by noving the fire season start
date to April 1%, allows the State to becone actively
involved in the fire prevention and control earlier in the
season.

2:58:45 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch questioned if an extra nonth would
add additional expense and asked why the Legislature should
decide rather than the Conm ssioner for the Departnent of
Nat ural Resour ces.

M. Jackson reported that the intention was to provide the
Comm ssioner with the authority to bring people online
earlier. Representative Wyhrauch repeated his question.
M. Jackson noted it is at the request of the firefighters
to be able to be better prepared, earlier in the season. He
poi nted out that in sone instances, the State has to pay for
firefighters brought up fromthe | ower ’48.

Representative Foster comrented that over 1,000 fires are
man mnmade and questioned the relief that comes from arson
fires.

M. Jackson said that they had not considered arson set
fires. It is the early season fires that are the nmain

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



concern. He did not know how those fires were started, but
the intent is to guarantee that they are put out as quickly
as possible with avail abl e resources.

3:04:17 PM

Representati ve Hol m voiced concern that bills |like this set
the entire State into a poor situation. He asked if using
“fire season” would provide the Conm ssioner nore power for
all the State. M. Jackson said it would. He added t hat
t he Comm ssioner “may” designate periods other than the fire
season to prohibit the setting of fires that would unduly
increase fire danger. The legislation only puts it into
effect, one nonth earlier.

Representative Hol m voiced concerned with the snow nelting
at different times in various parts of the State, making the
fire potential different statew de. He believed that a
“bl anket statenment” could negatively affect different parts
of the State not at danger.

M. Jackson pointed out that currently, local authorities
determ ne the |ocal danger. The local nunicipalities deter
regional ly.

3:08:18 PM

CRAI G GOODRI CH, (TESTIFI ED VI A TELECONFERENCE), FIRE CHI EF,
CITY OF ANCHORAGE, testified that the purpose of the
| egislation requests to bring on air crews and part tine
menbership one nonth earlier. That action would help fight

canpaign fires. He advised the structural conponent of
having the crews on one nonth earlier. M. Goodrich
stressed that this is a crucial issue. A canpaign fire

costs the State about $1 million dollars per day. He noted
what the fiscal costs represent.

3:10: 15 PM

Representative Wyhrauch inquired why the bill does not
indicate that the Conmm ssioner designate the fire season
each year. M. Goodrich explained that would require a
guess to determ ne when the fires will occur. The intent is
to have the seasonal enployees back to work and equi prent
ready to go on fire alert. He enphasized that the training
and the equi prent should be ready beforehand. It would be
better to nove it up one nonth in statute.

Representative Weyhrauch reiterated why the first sentence
could not say that the Conm ssioner designates the first

day. M. Goodrich replied that |anguage would ask the
Conmi ssioner to imagine when to suspect a fire season
starts. There is an ecological change in conditions now

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



happening and the fire seasons are sinply starting a nonth
earlier.

3:12: 08 PM

Representative Kelly was concerned about the fiscal note
acconpanying the bill and spoke to the relentless pressure
of enployees in every field wanting to go to work earlier
He asked about exchanging the nonth up front, giving up the
back end. M. GGoodrich deferred to the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources. Representative Kelly reiterated his
concern with the fiscal note.

Co- Chair Meyer agreed.
3:14:27 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker disagreed with the manner in which the
bill had been presented. He requested to question M. Bus
fromthe Departnent.

SCOTT WALDEN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), COCRDI NATOR
KENAI PENI NSULA BOROUGH EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OFFI CE, KENAI,
spoke in support of the legislation. He provided nenbers a
handout of the major Kenai Peninsula fires since 1996+.
[ Copy on File].

He stressed that prevention is very inportant. NMobilization

is a reaction and an expense itself. Havi ng the resources
prepared conmes with costs — it is proactive. He urged
support for the bill.

3:19: 00 PM

Representative Kelly referenced the beetle kill spruce
concern and asked if that area was being logged to the
maxi mum M. Walden did not know the |ogging level. There

isS mtigation process preparation going on daily. They are
concentrating on the egress points, preparing for the |arge

fires. The Northern areas will benefit from passage of the
| egislation. The staging areas are generally in Palner and
Kenai . Having the operations one nonth early will benefit

the entire region.

Representative Kelly asked about the coordi nated approach
He thought it was “insane” not to maximze |ogging when it
serves as the base of the problem

3:21: 00 PM

M. Jackson advised that in the House Resource Committee
testimony was heard indicating there has been a significant
anount of logging in the region, which has helped with the
mtigation effort. He understood that since the majority of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



the trees have been dead for a long tinme, the value of that
tinmber is rapidly decreasing.

3:22:18 PM

NI CO BUS, ACTI NG Dl RECTOR, DIVISION OF ADM N STRATI VE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, offered to answer
guestions of the Commttee.

He noted queries proposed by Representative Wyhrauch,
regarding the statutes, stating that the proposed date of
April through Septenber has been offered because the
Department of Natural Resources prefers to provide fire
protection in a cost effective manner. The easiest way to
do that would be to provide long-term contracts. The
standard fire season used to be through late May to mddle
July. The contracts were witten and ready by that tineg;
however, currently, the aviation contracts are May through

Sept enber . As history has indicated and clinmtes have
changed, the fires are happening earlier, which is part of
the reason for the fiscal request - $395 thousand dollars

contractual services. He addressed the five-year contracts.

M. Buss responded to comments nade by Representative Kelly
regardi ng enpl oyee’s pressure to conme back to work earlier

The Departnent only has 32 full tine enployees in the fire
preparedness program and 179 seasonal enployees, which

remain four to seven nonths. The season is limted. He
recomended t hat what should be focused upon are determ ning
the needs and the best utilization of that staff. If the

State waits until May to train, they mght not be ready or
fully trained when the fires start.

3:25:29 PM

Representative Hawker observed that the bill changes the
definition of “fire season”. The only operative effect
defining fire season, the Comm ssioner may offer preventive
activities. He admtted that the additional authority
shoul d provide that and understood that extending the date
was the entire consequence of the bill. Representative

Hawker asked if +the State was nmandated to have the
definition of the fire contracts in place during the fire
season. He believed there were two separate policy calls
bei ng proposed and was troubled with the fiscal note. He
proposed it be zeroed out and run through the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources’ subconm ttee budget.

3:29: 00 PM

M. Bus agreed it was a policy call, noting that the
Departnment was requesting the funding.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer indicated he would not be *“confortable”
letting the bill leave Conmttee with the acconpanying
fiscal note because of the inpacts that would have on the
oper ati ng budget .

Representative Holm applauded Representative Hawker’s
assessnent. He asked why April 1% had been chosen. He
remenbered the huge fire in Fairbanks, which the State did
not fight.

M. Bus responded that the proposed |egislation would not
i npact actually the fighting of fires.

3:31:32 PM

LYNN W LCOCK, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), CHI EF OF FIRE
AND AVI ATION, DIVISION COF FORESTRY, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES, ANCHORAGE, stated that the April 1% date was set
because often fires begin by April 15",

Representative Hol m coomented on the nature of his “seasonal
busi ness”, proactively preparing in the autum for the
upcom ng spring. He pointed out he attenpts to rehire as
many workers as possible from the previous year, so that
they do not need to be trained.

M. WIcock said they do a lot of preparatory work in the
fall for fire fighting in the spring; however, pointed out
that they are subject to the national standard for fighting
fires, which calls for annual recertification for the safety
of the fire fighters. Also, there is extensive work, which
needs to be done in the spring for the fire-fighting season.

3:35:04 PM

Representative Joule inquired if there were other types of
trees being inpacted by the spruce type beetle. M. WIcock
replied that spruce bark beetle was the biggest influence.
He knew there were others, affecting hardwods but not
nearly with the sane inpact. He nentioned the aspen fluff.

Representative Joule asked if there was an insect affecting
the birch trees. M. WIcock replied that they have seen
birch pathogens, nostly defoliators, which cause |eave fall
later in the summer. Typically, hardwood stands are not the
problem in Al aska. It is controlling grass in the spring
and later on in the sumrer, switching to black spruce.

3:37:14 PM

Representative Joule inquired if the State was experiencing
a reduced annual precipitation. M. WIlcock replied he is
not a climtologist. He indicated that two years of reduced

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



rainfall is not an indication of a climte change and he did
not know if there was a new trend.

Representative Kelly read from the bill regarding the
Conmi ssi oner neking the declaration. He did not want to
experience pressure to bring enployees on for |onger periods
of time. He thought that the bill’s |anguage woul d provide
plenty of flexibility to the Conm ssioner.

3:39:31 PM

M. WIcock responded that the Conm ssioner’s authority was
exercised in 2003, the spring in which there were nany
fires. A fire nust occur before the Conm ssioner can
declare a fire season early-start. It only takes one ful
day of sunshine before the fire season starts and that is
difficult to predict.

Representative Kelly comented, “flexibility is relative to
weat her conditions”. He recommended extending it back by a
coupl e weeks and | eavi ng the budget al one.

3:43: 00 PM

CHRIS MAISCH (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTOR
DVISION OF FORESTRY, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES,
ANCHORAGE, explained that the problem with the early fire
season indication is that the budget is in tw different
BRU s. The suppression portion of the budget cannot be
accessed until there is activity. To bring people on early
in the season, they have to take the funds from the
preparedness part of the budget. That part of the budget is
currently funded at a level that allows bringing people back
at the My 1% date. It is not sinple because of the
financial resource restrictions.

Representative Kelly thought it could be noved up a couple
of weeks wi thout further budget appropriation.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if the bill were passed, would it
guar antee no suppl enental funding requests next year.

Representative Hawker commented that previous testinony
should not determ ne the budgeting process. He disagreed
about the need. He recommended structuring a budget w thout
t he additional noney and restructuring the BRU concerns. He
enphasi zed that pushing the date back does not have a fiscal
consequence.

3:46: 45 PM

Representative Kerttula asked the cost per day of conbating
a big fire. M. Bus responded anywhere between $1 thousand
- $260 thousand dol |l ars per day.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



Representative Kerttula questioned the problem between the
two BRUs with the Departnent’s budget. M. Bus expl ai ned
that the history of the fire suppression budget is varied.
The Departnent has tried a new approach in which they
conpletely separate it from actually doing the suppression

By doing that, they attenpt to approxi mate what an average
fire year would cost. Then the preparedness aspect is used
for aviation contracts and seasonal staff. The proposed
| egi sl ati on proposes to nake those contracts |onger. Wth
the current allocations, the Departnent cannot extend the
season.

3:49:01 PM

Representative Kerttula stated that the bottomline is that
t he Departnment cannot take care of the fire season with the
current budget. M. Bus replied that wthout the seasona
staff and the contracts, it becomes an efficiency issue.
The contracts need to be in place to nake the process nore
econom cal and is part of the speculation.

Co- Chai r Meyer referenced all the “unknowns”. He
recommended that the concerns be further discussed in the
Depar t ment of Nat ur al Resour ces Subconmi ttee W th

Representative Kelly, the Subconmttee Chair.

HB 395 was HELD in Committee for further discussion.
#

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:52 P. M

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/ 14/ 06 1:43 P. M



